
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session. 

Please ask for: 
Sharon Keenlyside 

 
14 September 2020 

 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
ESTATE MANAGEMENT APPEALS PANEL to be held on Wednesday 23 September 
2020 at 7.30 pm in the . 
 

 
Yours faithfully 

 
Corporate Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   SUBSTITUTION OF MEMBERS  
 

 To note any substitution of Panel Members made in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rules. 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

 To note any apologies. 
 

3.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 26 February 
2020 (previously circulated). 
 

4.   NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 10 
AND ANY ITEMS WITHDRAWN FROM THE AGENDA  
 

5.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this Agenda. 
 

Public Document Pack



6.   6 BROADFIELD PLACE, WELWYN GARDEN CITY - 6/2019/2122/EM - 
ENLARGEMENT OF DRIVEWAY (Pages 5 - 26) 
 

 The report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
sets out an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management (EM) Consent for the 
enlargement of a driveway. 
 

7.   38 KIRKLANDS, WELWYN GARDEN CITY - 6/2019/1328/EM - FORMATION OF 
HARDSTANDING INCLUDING THE PARTIAL REMOVAL OF THE FRONT 
HEDGEROW AND REMOVAL OF A HOLLY TREE (Pages 27 - 46) 
 

 The report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
sets out an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management (EM) Consent for the 
formation of a hardstanding which would include the partial removal of the front 
hedgerow and the removal of a holly tree. 
 

8.   7 HOMESTEAD LANE, WELWYN GARDEN CITY - 6/2019/3098/EM - ERECTION 
OF A SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION INCLUDING RAISING THE ROOF 
OF THE EXISTING OUTBUILDING TO CREATE A HABITABLE SPACE 
INCLUDING ALTERATIONS TO OPENINGS (Pages 47 - 64) 
 

 The report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
sets out an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management (EM) Consent for the 
erection of a single storey rear extension including raising the roof of the existing 
outbuilding to create a habitable space including alterations to openings. 
 

9.   184 HERONSWOOD ROAD, WELWYN GARDEN CITY - 6/2020/0154/EM - 
REPLACEMENT OF A FRONT DOOR (Pages 65 - 78) 
 

 The report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
sets out an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management (EM) Consent for the 
replacement of a front door. 
 

10.   SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION  
 

11.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 The Panel is asked to resolve: 
 
That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 12 (if any) on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information as defined 
in Section 100A(3) and Paragraphs 5 (privileged and legal advice) and 6 (statutory 
notice or order) Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as amended). 
 
In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information.     
 

PART II 
 



12.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF A CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT NATURE AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN  
 

 
Circulation: Councillors H.Bower (Chairman) 

A.Chesterman 
M.Cowan 
B.Fitzsimon 
 

F.Marsh 
L.Musk 
F.Thomson 
 

 Corporate Management Team 
Press and Public (except Part II Items) 

 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Sharon 
Keenlyside, Governance Services on 01707 357467 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Part I 
Main author: Kerrie Charles 
Executive Member: Cllr Stephen Boulton 
Handside Ward 

  

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
ESTATE MANAGEMENT APPEALS PANEL – 30 MARCH 2020 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING AND 

GOVERNANCE)  

  

6/2019/2122/EM 
 
6 BROADFIELD PLACE, WELWYN GARDEN CITY, AL8 6LJ 
 
ENLARGEMENT OF DRIVEWAY 
 
APPLICANT: Mr A TURNBULL 

 
1. Background 

 
1.1. The appeal is against the refusal of Estate Management Consent for the 

enlargement of a driveway. The application was refused on the 11 November 2019 
for the following reason: 
 
“It is considered that the development would result in an unacceptable amount of 
hard landscaping, contrary to policy EM3 and EM4 which in turn would have an 
unacceptable impact on the appearance and ethos of the Garden City.” 
 

2. Site Description 
 

2.1 The appeal site, No.6 Broadfield Place is a detached dwelling located in a cul-de-
sac situated off Attimore Road. 

 
3. The Proposal 

 
3.1. The proposal seeks Estate Management Consent to extend the existing 

hardstanding on the frontage.  
 

3.2. The proposed hardstanding would replace the existing soft landscaped area and 
extend the existing hardstanding across the frontage.  Additionally 0.5m of the 
front boundary hedge would also be removed. 

 
4. Relevant Estate Management History 

 
4.1     W6/1993/5429/EM - Erection of single storey rear extension, Granted 18    
          January 1994  
 
4.2      W6/1998/5026/EM - The erection of a first floor rear extension, Granted          

09 arch 1998  
 

4.2.1 W6/2003/0140/EM - Erection of a single storey side extension, extension to 
garage and widening of hardstanding, Granted 17 March 2003 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



 

5      Policy 
 

5.1      Estate Management Scheme Policies (October 2008) 
 

EM3 – Landscaping  
EM4 – Hardstanding  
 

6. Representations Received 
 

6.1 No representations have been received. 
 

7 Discussion 
 

7.1      This is an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management Consent.  The        
appellant’s letter of appeal and supporting documents is attached at Appendix 1 
and the original officer’s report is attached at Appendix 2. 

 
7.2 The key issue in the determination of this appeal is the impact of the proposed 

development upon the amenities and values of the Garden City.  
 
7.3 In recognition of the importance of Welwyn Garden City as a unique town and in 

order to protect the amenities and values of the Garden City, the Estate 
Management Scheme was set up. The purpose of the Management Scheme and 
its importance to homeowners is to ensure that homes and street scenes are kept 
in harmony with the original design and concept of the town. 

 
7.4 With proposed hardstanding, the challenge with Garden City settlements is how to 

manage change whilst at the same time ensuring that the fundamental aesthetics, 
amenities and values of the Garden City remain intact. The need to accommodate 
the rise in car ownership has resulted in pressure for vehicular hard standings on 
the frontages of homes and this has over time resulted in a change to the 
appearance of streets. The removal of excessive areas or prominent landscaping 
such as trees and hedges rather than the hard standing itself can, over time, erode 
character. 
 

7.5 Accordingly, the council will only allow hard surfacing (paths, paving, concrete, 
gravelled areas, drives and hard standings) in front gardens for the parking of 
private motor vehicles which retain or create sufficient soft ‘green’ landscaping 
(grass, flower beds, shrubs, trees and hedges) and a sufficient length of hedgerow 
(if applicable) along the frontage of the property to reduce the visual prominence of 
parked vehicles.   

 
7.6 The Council aims to ensure that a significant proportion, around 50 per cent of the 

frontage is retained as landscaped ‘greenery’ unless individual circumstances 
indicate that this would not be appropriate, to retain the appearance and ethos of 
the Garden City.      

 
7.7 Policy EM3 of the Estate Management Scheme states that works to trees and 

hedgerows will only be allowed where the works would not result in the loss of 
landscaping which would harm the character and amenities of the area and where 
sufficient justification for the works has been given or there are other 
considerations that apply.     

Page 6



7.8 Policy EM4 of the Estate Management Scheme seeks to preserve the unique 
architectural heritage of the town and its buildings and only proposals for hard 
surfacing, for the parking of private vehicles in front gardens will only be allowed 
where the works would retain an appropriate balance between hard and soft 
landscaping and do not result in the loss of any existing hedgerows or landscaping 
along the boundary, other than the minimum required to access the hard standing, 
that would be harmful to the amenities and values of the street scene in which it is 
located.      

 
7.9 The appeal proposal would result in an increase in the amount of hardstanding at 

the site and removing some of the remaining boundary hedge on the frontage of 
the site.  It would result in very limited soft landscaping being retained and result in 
an unbalanced proportion of soft and hard landscaping.  Although the plans show 
the side boundary hedges would be retained the extent of hardstanding proposed 
would cause detrimental harm to the appearance of the property and the street 
scene.  This would result in an unbalanced proportion of soft and hard landscaping 
at the property, detracting from the overall character of the area.       

 
7.10 In addition, the proposal would result in the loss of some of the hedgerow at the 

front of the site, which is not justified in this instance. Furthermore, the loss of the 
hedgerow would result in the amount of hardstanding appearing more prominent 
within the street scene. As a result the proposal would have a detrimental impact 
upon the uniform character and appearance of the street scene and wider 
amenities and values of the area. As such, the development is contrary to Policy 
EM3 of the Estate Management Scheme.    

 
7.11 A case has been advanced by the appellant in support of the appeal. The 

appellant states that Broadfield Place is a cul-de-sac and as such has pressure on 
the increasing numbers of vehicles requiring parking spaces and that other 
residential properties within the cul-de-sac have significant amounts of 
hardstanding. 

 
7.12 The appellant attaches several photographs to demonstrate this. It is 

acknowledged that there are areas of hardstanding at properties in the area, 
however, no historic consents can be found for these properties and every 
application must be considered on its own merits.  The appeal proposal would 
result in approximately an 83% coverage by hardstanding and the loss of some of 
the front hedgerow and soft landscaping.  This is an excessive amount of 
hardstanding that has a detrimental impact to the values and amenities of the 
property and the street scene. 

 
7.13 A compelling case has therefore not been made by the appellant to demonstrate 

why the circumstances advanced, when considered in its context, should override 
the wider values and amenities of Broadfield Place and the Garden City. 
Accordingly, the proposal fails to reflect the character and appearance of the other 
properties to which it is located and the street scene of Broadfield Place. The 
proposed development therefore fails to maintain the amenities and values of the 
Estate Management Area. 
 

8 Conclusion 
 

8.1 No significant new evidence or information has been put forward by the      
appellant which adds to or would alter officer’s recommendation.   

Page 7



 
8.2 When assessing whether any harm would result from the balance of hard and soft 

landscaping retained, as well as the removal of any hedgerow screening, full 
consideration is given to the existing condition of the street scene. In this case, the 
loss of a front hedgerow and the amount of hard surfacing proposed would cause 
harm to the values and amenities of the street scene. Accordingly, the landscaping 
works proposed fail to accord with policies EM3 and EM4 of the Welwyn Garden 
City Estate Management Scheme. 

 
9 Recommendation 

 
9.1 That the Members uphold the delegated decision and dismiss the appeal. 
 
Author :  Kerrie Charles (Development Management) 
Date:    4 March 2020 
 
Background papers: 
 
Appendix 1: Appellants grounds of appeal 
Appendix 2: Original delegated officer’s report 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 8



 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



From:
To: Planning
Cc: Kerrie Charles; Jamie Nicholas
Subject: Fw: Planning Application 6/2019/2122/EM - 6 Broadfield Place Welwyn Garden City AL8 6LJ
Date: 26 December 2019 12:24:10

Dear Planning,
Further to my correspondence with the planning case officers I would like to submit an
appeal for the above refusal of application.
I understand the application was refused due to less than 50% of the front garden edges
and frontages being maintained as soft landscaping.
To this point I would like to make the following responses:
1. Broadfield Place is a cul-de-sac and as such has pressure on the increasing numbers of
vehicles requiring parking spaces. My own property being positioned partly in the corner
and angled has a relatively small frontage onto the street area compared with other
properties.
2. My own plans for Number 6 seek to minimise the effect of the small increase in hard
standing area on the character and appearance of the street scene. To this end it retains a
large proportion of the existing front hedgerow to screen vehicles. It also looks to retain as
much as possible of the small grass area to one side. It also retains all the remaining
boundary hedges and the shrub and bush planting at the front of the house itself.
3. I have submitted the photos of adjoining properties to mine in Broadfield Place which
are referred to below and have had permission granted for their alterations.
- No 3 opposite my house and the only other detached property in Broadfield Place. Full
hard standing on frontal area
- No 7 next door to my property. Full hard standing
- No 8. Full hard standing
- No 10 Full hard standing, small area of shrubs
- No 12 Full hard standing small shrub area
All the above have considerably exceeding my suggested area of hard standing.
Precedent of course may, or may not, take a role in granting or refusing a planning
application . However, consistency is a material planning consideration
I do not wish to emulate these properties but taking into account my relatively limited
change to the hard standing area, along with the precedents already set and the
consistency of decision as a material planning consideration, I would ask for this to be
reviewed.
Kind Regards,
Andrew Turnbull

Page 11

mailto:planning@welhat.gov.uk
mailto:K.Charles@welhat.gov.uk
mailto:j.nicholas@welhat.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 19



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - PLANNING, PUBLIC PROTECTION AND GOVERNANCE

DELEGATED APPLICATION

Application No: 6/2019/2122/EM
Location: 6 Broadfield Place Welwyn Garden City AL8 6LJ
Proposal: Enlargement of driveway
Officer: Mrs Kerrie Charles

Recommendation: Refused

6/2019/2122/EM
Context
Site and 
Application 
description

No.6 Broadfield Place is a detached dwelling located in a cul-de-sac situated 
off Attimore Road.

The proposal is to increase hardstanding and partially remove the front 
boundary hedge.

Constraints Estate Management Scheme, as defined within the Leasehold Reform Act 
1967

Relevant history Planning

Application Number: W6/1993/5429/EM Decision: Granted Decision 
Date: 18 January 1994
Proposal: Erection of single storey rear extension

Application Number: W6/1998/5026/EM Decision: Granted Decision 
Date: 09 March 1998
Proposal: The erection of a first floor rear extension

Application Number: W6/2003/0140/EM Decision: Granted Decision 
Date: 17 March 2003
Proposal: Erection of a single storey side extension, extension to garage and 
widening of hardstanding

Notifications
Neighbour 
representations

Support: 0 Object: 0 Other: 0

Summary of 
neighbour 
responses

No responses received.

Consultee 
responses

1. Highways England – has no objection

2. Hertfordshire County Council - Hertfordshire Transport Programmes & 

Page 23



2 of 3

Strategy has no objection.

Relevant Policies

EM1  EM2  EM3 EM4
 

Considerations
Design (form, 
size, scale, siting) 
and Character 
(impact upon 
amenities and 
values of Garden 
City)

Policy EM4 seeks to retain the appearance and ethos of the Garden City while 
accommodating the increased pressure for vehicle hard standings which has 
resulted from a rise in car ownership.  Policy EM4 also suggests that proposals 
should retain as much soft “green” landscaping as possible, and not result in a 
detrimental loss of hedgerows which can be used to reduce the visual 
prominence of parked vehicles.  Policy EM3 also states that works to 
hedgerows will only be allowed where the works would not result in a loss of 
landscaping which would harm the character and amenities of the area. 

Council guidance says that the council will aim to ensure that a significant 
proportion of around 50 per cent of the frontage is retained as landscaped 
‘greenery’ to retain the appearance and ethos of the Garden City, unless 
individual circumstances indicate that this would not be appropriate. 

The proposal includes part removal of front boundary hedge and the formation 
of hardstanding.

By increasing the amount of hardstanding, and removing some of the 
remaining boundary hedge on the frontage of the site it would result in very 
limited soft landscaping being retained and result in an unbalanced proportion 
of soft and hard landscaping and although the plans show the side boundary 
hedges would be retained the development would cause detrimental harm to 
the appearance of the house frontage, the wider street and ethos of the garden 
city contrary to policy EM3 and EM4 of the Welwyn Garden City Estate

Impact on 
neighbours

The proposal is not considered to have any harmful impact on any 
neighbouring property.

Any other 
considerations 

N/A

Conclusion
It is considered that the development would result in an unacceptable amount of hard landscaping, 
contrary to policy EM3 and EM4 which in turn would have an unacceptable impact on the 
appearance and ethos of the Garden City. The application is therefore recommended for refusal.

Reasons for Refusal: 

1. It is considered that the development would result in an unacceptable amount of 
hard landscaping, contrary to policy EM3 and EM4 which in turn would have an 
unacceptable impact on the appearance and ethos of the Garden City.

REFUSED DRAWING NUMBERS

2.
Plan Revision Details Received Date

Page 24



3 of 3

Number Number

Site 
Location

Site Location 6 September 2019

13/09/19-
AT1

Existing Driveway 16 September 2019

13/09/19-
AT2

Proposed Extension to 
Driveway

16 September 2019

Determined By:

Mr Michael Robinson
11 November 2019

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 

 

Part I 
Main author: James Homer 
Executive Member: Cllr Stephen Boulton 
Sherrards Ward 

  

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
ESTATE MANAGEMENT APPEALS PANEL – 23 SEPTEMBER 2020 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING AND GOVERNANCE)  
  

6/2019/1328/EM 

38 KIRKLANDS, WELWYN GARDEN CITY, AL8 7RD  

FORMATION OF HARDSTANDING   

APPLICANT: MR NOEL SHIRRAN 

  

1  Background  

1.1  This is an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management Scheme Consent for 

the formation of a hardstanding which would include the partial removal of the front 

hedgerow and the removal of a holly tree. The application (6/2019/1328/EM) was 

refused for the following reason:   

           ‘The proposed development would result in an excessive amount of hardstanding 

and a total absence of soft landscaping which together with the proposed fence 

would erode the street scene and be harmful to the values and amenities of the 

application site and this area of Welwyn Garden City. As a result, the proposal 

would fail to maintain the values and amenities of the Garden City and comply with 

Policies EM2, EM3 and EM4 of the Estate Management Scheme’.   
 

2  Site Description  

2.1  The subject property is a single storey detached dwelling and, at present, the house 

is accessed by a footpath to the street with the remainder of the frontage lined with a 

mature hedge. The remainder of the front garden is grassed with some significant 

mature trees and small areas of hardstanding. In addition, the front garden of the 

application site slopes down from the highway toward the main dwelling.  

2.2  This area of Kirklands is verdant and characterised by mature trees and hedgerows 

typical of this area of the garden city.  

3  The Proposal  

3.1   The application sought consent for the formation of an area of hardstanding within the 

front garden of the appeal site, which included the removal of a section of front hedge 

and a holly tree within the front garden.  

 

Page 27

Agenda Item 7



Page 2 

4  Relevant Estate Management History  

4.1  None.  

5 Representations Received 

5.1 None.   

6 Policy  

6.1 Estate Management Scheme Policies (October 2008): 

 EM3 – Soft landscaping 

 EM4 – Hard landscaping 

7  Discussion  

  

7.1  This is an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management Scheme Consent for 

the removal of a section of hedgerow, a holly tree and the formation of an area of 

hardstanding within the front garden of the appeal site.  The appellant’s letter of 

appeal and revised proposal is attached at Appendix 1 and the delegated 

officer’s report for application 6/2019/1328/EM is attached at Appendix 2. 
  

7.2      The key issue in the determination of this appeal is the impact the development 

is having on the character and appearance of the Garden City.  
  

7.3     All applications to the Estate Management Scheme are assessed against the 

current policies relevant to the proposals. In this case, the application was 

assessed against Policies EM3 and EM4.  Policy EM3 of the Estate Management 

Scheme states that works to hedgerows and trees will only be allowed where the 

works would not result in the loss of landscaping which would harm the character 

and amenities of the area and where sufficient justification for the works has 

been given. Policy EM4 seeks to retain the appearance of the Garden City while 

accommodating the increased pressure for vehicle hard standings due to the rise 

in car ownership over recent years. In doing so, Policy EM4 states that proposals 

to construct hardstanding should retain or create sufficient soft ‘green’ 

landscaping to help preserve the character of Welwyn Garden City. In addition, 

works must not result in the loss of any existing hedgerows or landscaping along 

the boundary other than the minimum required to access the hardstanding. 
 

7.4  As stated in the delegated officer report, the plans submitted with the application 

are inconsistent. The site plan shows an area of hardstanding with a depth 4.8m 

and a width of 2.4m in contrast to the section plan which shows a depth of 5.5m. 

The inaccuracy of the plans did not assist in the assessment of the application. 

However, it was considered that should Estate Management Scheme consent be 

granted, a condition could be applied to state that the hardstanding could be no 

larger than 4.8m by 2.4m and under these circumstances the plans would 

demonstrate that more than 50% of the front garden would remain as soft 

landscaping.  

 

7.5 The application proposed the removal of a 2.6m section of the front boundary 

hedgerow, however, due to the inaccuracy of the plans and the extent of the 

proposed engineering works there is concern that the development will result in 

Page 28



Page 3 

the significant loss of these mature hedgerows along the front and side 

boundaries and create an area that would appear overly exposed.  

 

7.6 The application also shows the removal of a holly tree with no replacement 

planting proposed within the front garden. The holly tree is considered a 

significant tree within the landscape and its removal, combined with the loss of 

the hedgerow, would result in a significant loss of landscaping within this area of 

Kirklands. Within the application, it was not considered that any significant 

justification for the removal of the tree and section of hedgerow had been given. 

 

7.5 In their covering letter, the appellant highlights the support he has from 

neighbours and the parking issues faced during the day and overnight as a result 

of residents from Knightsfield and staff from the local primary school parking 

along Kirklands. The appellant states that narrowness of the road and the school 

drop off and pick up times compound the situation. It is accepted that parking in 

the area can at times be difficult, however, this is not considered significant 

enough to allow the excessive removal of the hedgerows and holly tree within 

the application site.  

 

7.7 The appellant has also submitted revised drawings with the appeal. The revised 

scheme proposes significant alterations, however, they cannot be considered as 

part of the appeal. It should be noted that the revised proposal is unlikely to 

receive Estate Management Scheme consent due to the size of the hardstanding 

across the front of the site and its prominence within the street due to the 

engineering work required to create a level surface. In addition, the scope of the 

engineering works is likely to require planning permission.        

 

8  Conclusion   

  

8.1  Based on the inaccuracy of the plans regarding the extent, design and layout of 

the hardstanding proposed, together with the excessive removal of the front/side 

hedgerow and removal of the holly tree, the proposal would not retain an 

appropriate balance between hard and soft landscaping and would erode and 

detract from the character and appearance of the appeal property and the street 

scene of this part of Kirklands. Accordingly, the proposal would be detrimental to 

the values and amenities of this part of the Garden City and contrary to Polices 

EM3 and EM4 of the Estate Management Scheme.   

 

9  Recommendation  

  

9.1  That Members uphold the delegated decision and dismiss the appeal.  
 

 

 

James Homer (Estate Management Scheme Manager)  

Date: 16 March 2020  
  

Background Information  

Appendix 1: Appellant’s grounds of appeal 

Appendix 2: Original delegated officer’s report   
 

Page 29



Page 4 

 

Page 30



         38 Kirklands  
         Welwyn Garden City 
         Hertforshire 
         AL8 7RD 
         ?? December 2019 
 

Dear Mr. Haigh 

Application No. 6/2019/1328/EM 

Thank you for your letter dated 13th August 2019 outlining your reasons for the refusal of the formation 
of a hardstanding. I would like to express my disappointment in your decision to refuse my application 
and put forward my views in appealing your decision. 
 
As a recent resident to Kirklands, I find it almost impossible to park during the day and over night. This is 
due to residents from Knightsfield and staff from the local primary school taking up valuable parking 
spaces. As a result leaving me no choice but to park up at the local shops in the Shoplands car park. 
There is also the ongoing issue during school drop off in the morning between 8:30 am and 9:10am, 
11:45 -12:15 lunchtime, and after school pick up between 3:00pm and 3:30. There are always cars 
parked along the grass verge in front of the residents’ houses in the street. This problem is not only 
inconsiderate to the people who live in the street, but it is also a danger to children/school children 
crossing the road. Due to the narrowness of the road I am surprised that a one-way system is not 
employed on this road. 
 
I recently have spoken to several of my local neighbours’ to ask if they had any objections to my request 
of a driveway. None had any objections and all were in favour of me having a driveway. I feel having a 
driveway would make the road much safer as other cars would no longer be able to park up on the 
verge, therefore, reducing any risk of danger. 
 
We currently have two cars and when we retire in the near future we were considering buying an 
electric powered car and reducing to just one car. Unfortunately to do this, I would need off street 
parking with a charging point and currently, this does not appear to be a viable option. Electric powered 
cars are becoming increasingly popular and are environmentally friendly. 
 
I am writing to ask you to re-consider your decision. I appreciate how you want to preserve the 
hedgerow within the street. Following discussions/correspondence with the case officer I have made a 
number of alterations to the location of the proposed hard standing which retains the holly tree and 
avoids any possible damage to the hedge at the corner of the site. The opening has been relocated away 
from the corner of the site and the holly tree. 
 
The revised drawings accompany this letter. The access opening in the hedge is restricted to 2.4m which 
I believe is in accordance with Policy EM4. Due to the topography of the site it will be necessary to 
construct a barrier parallel to the front hedgerow. The intention is to construct this barrier in the form of 
a hedgerow to give the impression when passing, of a ‘continuous hedgerow’. Due to the length of the 
hedgerow and the proposed opening width I believe I am within the 50% limit retention of hedgerow. 
 

Page 31



I have also spoken to Harry Bower, my local Sherrards ward Councillor, who has agreed to consider the 
revised details. 
 
I thank you for your time and attention regarding my application and look forward to hearing from you 
in due course. 
 
Kind Regards, 

 

 

Noel Shirran 

 

Page 32



P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 37



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 39

noel.shirran
Polygon



This page is intentionally left blank



GATE

C

O

N

C

R

E

T

E

 

P

A

T

H

/

S

T

E

P

S

CONCRETE RAMP

CONCRETE

RAMP

+

0

.

0

0

0

-

3

.

3

0

0

MH

MH

MH

D

W

A

R

F

 

W

A

L

L

-3.600

-4.150

-2.450

-4.600

HEDGE

HEDGE

HEDGE

HEDGE

Concrete

-

0

.

3

0

0

-

0

.

2

2

5

-

0

.

7

5

0

-

1

.

8

0

0

-

2

.

8

5

0

-

1

.

2

7

5

-

2

.

3

2

5

-3.450

-3.850

-4.050

TREE

PROPOSED DROPPED KERB ZONE

LP

7

7

1

8

HEDGE

-2.200

P
R

O

P
O

S
E

D

O

P
E

N
IN

G

HOLLY

TREE

PROPOSED OFF STREET

HARD STANDING AREA

FOR CAR PARKING

Page 41

AutoCAD SHX Text
KIRKLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
No. 38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
No. 40

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
GRASS VERGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
HITHERWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
02/19

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
-

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
PLANNING

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
Scales

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
Drawn

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
Drg No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
Job No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
Rev

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
Chk'd

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
Project

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
Title

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
chkd

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
issued for purpose indicated

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
date

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
S1

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
38 KIRKLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
NS

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
1:200 @ A3

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
10/18

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
-

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
1. ALL LEVELS ARE RELATIVE TO THE LEVEL AT THE ENTRANCE GATE. THIS LEVEL IS TAKEN AS +0.000.

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
02/19

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
-

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
B PLANNING

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
06/19

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
-

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
C ESTATE MANAGEMENT



This page is intentionally left blank



WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - PLANNING, PUBLIC PROTECTION AND GOVERNANCE

DELEGATED APPLICATION

Application No: 6/2019/1328/EM
Location: 38 Kirklands, Welwyn Garden City, AL8 7RD
Proposal: Formation of a hardstanding
Officer: Ms Louise Sahlke

Recommendation: Refused

6/2019/1328/EM 
Context
Site and 
Application 
description

38 Kirklands is a single storey, detached dwelling located within the Welwyn 
Garden City Estate Management Area.  At present the house has only a 
footpath access (small gate) to the street with the remainder of the frontage 
lined with a mature hedge. The rest of the front garden is grassed with small 
areas of hardstanding. There are some significant, mature trees within the front 
garden which combined with the mature hedgerow form strategic views against 
the backdrop of the open space. 

The road is verdant with mature trees and hedgerow forming the predominant 
character of the road in line with the character of the garden city.

The proposal seeks estate management consent for the formation of a 
hardstanding, however the proposed plans also demonstrate the partial 
removal of the front and side hedgerow and a holly tree. 

The proposed plans also demonstrate the change of use of amenity land in 
front of the garden and engineering works which require separate planning 
permission. 

Constraints Estate Management Scheme, as defined within the Leasehold Reform Act 
1967

Relevant history No specific Estate Management applications.
Notifications

Neighbour 
responses

Support:  0 Object:  0 Other: 0

Summary of 
neighbour 
responses

None.

Relevant Policies

EM3    EM4              
Considerations
Does the development minimise impact on neighbours?

Yes No N/A
Comment (if required):      

Vehicle Hardstandings Only.  Sections (a) and (b) completed only if hardstanding proposed

Page 43



2 of 4

(a) Would the hardstanding retain an appropriate balance between hard and soft 
landscaping?  

(b) Would only the minimum length of hedgerow required to access the hardstanding be 
removed?  (e.g. privacy, outlook, light etc.)

Yes No 
Comment (if required):      

The need to accommodate the rise in car ownership does result in pressure for vehicle hard 
standings on the frontages of homes.

Policy EM4 of the Estate Management Scheme concerns hard landscaping works. It seeks to 
preserve the unique landscape value of the town and the setting of buildings and properties. This 
policy also seeks to maintain an appropriate balance between soft and hard landscaping and to 
retain landscape frontages, such as hedges. Supportive text under Policy EM4 states that the
council will aim to ensure that a significant proportion, around 50% unless individual circumstances 
indicate that this would not be appropriate, of the frontage is retained as landscaped ‘greenery’ to 
retain the appearance and ethos of the Garden City.

The plans provided are not accurate, on the site plan, the area of hardstanding is annotated as to 
measure 4.8 metres by 2.4 metres. However on the section plan, the depth of the area of 
hardstanding is annotated as approximately 5.5 metres. These levels of inaccuracy across the plans 
do not assist in the determination of this Estate Management Consent. However it is considered that 
should Estate Management Consent be granted that a condition could be applied to state that the 
car parking space can only measure 4.8 metres by 2.4 metres. In these circumstances the plans 
would demonstrate that more than 50% of the front garden will remain as soft landscaping. 

Policy EM4 allows the loss of some hedgerow so long as it is the minimum required to access the 
hardstanding. It is considered that the extent, design and layout of the hardstanding would be  likely 
to result in the excessive removal of the front and side hedgerow which when combined would 
create an area that would appear exposed. Therefore the proposal would not retain an appropriate 
balance between hard and soft landscaping and would erode and detract from the character and 
appearance of the application property and the street scene of this part of Kirklands. Accordingly, the 
proposal would be detrimental to the values and amenities of this part of the Garden City contrary to 
Policy EM4 of the Estate Management Scheme.

The proposed plans also demonstrate the removal of the holly tree with no replacement element of 
landscaping. The height and maturity of the holly tree provides a verdant and pleasing backdrop 
from views across the open space to the side and rear of 38 Kirklands and views from the 
streetscene. It is considered that its removal combined with the loss of hedgerow would result in the 
loss of landscaping which would harm the character and amenities of the area. Furthermore, it is not 
considered that there are other considerations that apply or that any sufficient justification for the 
works has been given. Therefore the removal of the holly tree and hedgerow is contrary to Policy 
EM3 of the Estate Management Scheme. 

Furthermore, based on the inaccuracy of the plans, the proposed reduction in width of the front/side 
hedgerow and extent of the proposed engineering works there is concern that the works would result 
in the significant loss of this part of the mature and verdant hedgerow. The height and maturity of the 
hedgerow provides a verdant and pleasing backdrop from views across the open space to the side 
and rear of 38 Kirklands and views from the streetscene. It is considered that the hedgerow removal 
would result in the loss of landscaping which would harm the character and amenities of the area. 
Furthermore, it is not considered that there are other considerations that apply or that any sufficient 
justification for the works has been given. Therefore the removal of the holly tree is contrary to Policy 
EM3 of the Estate Management Scheme. 

Page 44



3 of 4

By virtue of the extent, design and layout of hardstanding proposed together with the excessive 
removal of the front/side hedgerow and removal of the holly tree, the proposal would not retain an 
appropriate balance between hard and soft landscaping and would erode and detract from the 
character and appearance of the application property and the street scene of this part of Kirklands. 
Accordingly, the proposal would be detrimental to the values and amenities of this part of the Garden 
City contrary to Policies EM3 and EM4 of the Estate Management Scheme.

Any other considerations 

• Please note that the dropped kerb would require separate consent from Hertfordshire County 
Council Highways Department.

• In order to access the driveway, they will have to drive over an area of grassed amenity 
space (a grass verge). This land is within County Council/Welwyn Hatfield ownership and 
does not have planning permission as residential land in connection with number 38 
Kirklands. The applicants have been advised as part of this Estate Management Application if 
they want to use this area as a vehicular access way in connection with number 38 Kirklands, 
they will need to apply for planning permission for the change of use of the land from amenity 
land to residential use. They will also require a dropped curb. This is a consideration in 
assessing this current Estates Management application, because the current proposal seeks 
consent for an area of hardstanding that can only be accessed via this grass verge.

• It is noted that you wish to undertake engineering works to create an area of hardstanding. 
You will need to apply for planning permission for engineering works to your property.

Conclusion
The proposal fails to maintain and enhance the amenities and values of the Garden City and are
therefore not compliant with the Estate Management Scheme.

Reasons for Refusal: 

1. By virtue of the extent, design and layout of hardstanding proposed together with 
the excessive removal of/impact upon the hedgerow and removal of the holly tree, 
the proposal would not retain an appropriate balance between hard and soft 
landscaping and would erode and detract from the character and appearance of 
the application property and the street scene of this part of Kirklands. Accordingly, 
the proposal would be detrimental to the values and amenities of this part of the 
Garden City contrary to Policies EM3 and EM4 of the Estate Management Scheme.

REFUSED DRAWING NUMBERS

2.
Plan 
Number

Revision 
Number

Details Received Date

S1 C Site Plan 4 June 2019

SK.2 Proposed Elevation from 
Pavement

4 June 2019

SK.1 Existing Elevation from 
Pavement

4 June 2019

Page 45



4 of 4

SK.3 Section Through Proposed 
Dropped Kerb/Hardstanding

4 June 2019

Location 
Plan

Location Plan 18 June 2019

Determined By:

Mr Michael Robinson
13 August 2019

Page 46



Page 1 

 

Part I 
Main author: James Homer 
Executive Member: Cllr Stephen Boulton 
Howlands Ward 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
ESTATE MANAGEMENT APPEALS PANEL – 23 SEPTEMBER 2020 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING AND GOVERNANCE)  
  

6/2019/3098/EM 

7 HOMESTEAD LANE, WELWYN GARDEN CITY, AL7 4LT  

ERECTION OF SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION, RAISING OUTBUILDING ROOF 

LEVEL TO FACILITATE CONVERSION TO HABITABLE SPACE WITH ALTERATIONS TO 

OPENINGS.  

APPLICANT: MS A EYERS  

1  Background  

1.1  This is an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management Scheme Consent for 

the erection of a single storey rear extension including raising the roof of the 

existing outbuilding, to create a habitable space including alterations to openings. 

The application (6/2019/3098/EM) was refused for the following reason:   

           ‘The proposed extension and alterations to the outbuilding will result in a 

development which would dominate the rear garden of the application site. The 

proposed rear extension, combined with the existing outbuilding, will see the rear 

elevation extend over 10m from the main rear of the original building line and at its 

widest point, extend over halfway across the rear garden resulting in a 

disproportionate addition. In terms of outlook, neighbour amenity is likely to be 

affected due to the additional length and height of the proposal. As a result, the 

application fails to comply with Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme’. 
 

2  Site Description  

2.1  The subject property is a two storey mid-terrace property located on the eastern side 

of Homestead Lane.  The appeal site is set back from the highway behind a grass 

verge, pathway and relatively deep front garden. The rear garden of the property 

includes an attached outbuilding which is adjoined to a neighbouring building at 9 

Homestead Lane. The rear garden backs onto the gardens of Homestead Court. 

3  The Proposal  

3.1   The application sought Estate Management Scheme consent to raise the roof level of 

the existing outbuilding and erect a single storey rear extension at the back of the 

existing outbuilding to facilitate its conversion into a habitable space. Alterations to 

existing openings within the outbuilding were also proposed.  

Page 47

Agenda Item 8



Page 2 

4  Relevant Estate Management History  

4.1  None, although a planning application for this development was also submitted and 
refused.  

    

5 Representations Received 

5.1 None.   

6 Policy  

6.1 Estate Management Scheme Policies (October 2008): 

   - EM1 – Extensions and alterations   

7  Discussion  

  

7.1  This is an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management Scheme Consent to 

raise the roof of an existing outbuilding, alter existing openings within the 

outbuilding and erect an extension to the rear of the outbuilding to create a 

habitable space. The appellant’s letter of appeal and supporting documents is 

attached at Appendix 1 and the delegated officer’s report for application 

6/2019/3098/EM is attached at Appendix 2. 
  

7.2      The key issue in the determination of this appeal is the impact the proposed 

installation would have on the character and appearance of the appeal site and 

the surrounding area.  
  

7.3     All applications to the Estate Management Scheme are assessed against the 

current policies relevant to the proposals. In this case, the application was 

assessed against Policy EM1.  Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme 

states that extensions and alterations to existing properties will only be allowed if 

they are in keeping with the design, appearance, materials and architectural 

detailing used in the existing building and do not have a detrimental impact on 

the amenities and values of the surrounding area or the residential amenity of 

adjoining occupiers.  
  

7.4  The appeal property is a mid-terrace property of similar homes that is located on 

the eastern side of Homestead Lane. The existing outbuilding within the rear 

garden is attached to the main building by a section of roof which covers the 

area outside the back door and the existing side access which runs between the 

no.7 and no.9. The outbuilding is attached to a similar structure within the rear 

garden of no.9 and extends approx. 6.4m into the garden from the rear building 

line of the main dwelling. The outbuilding is approx. 2.3m in height and extends 

approx. 2m from the boundary with no.9. 

 

7.5 The application sought Estate Management Scheme consent to raise the roof level of 

the existing outbuilding and erect a single storey rear extension at the back of the 

existing outbuilding to facilitate its conversion into a habitable space. Alterations to 

existing openings within the outbuilding were also proposed.  The proposed extension 

would extend approx. 4.2m from the rear of the existing outbuilding which, when 

combined with the existing outbuilding, would result in a rear elevation which would 

Page 48



Page 3 

be in excess of 10m from the rear elevation of the main dwelling. The proposed 

extension would also have an approximate width of 3.3m, which is approx. 1.3m 

wider than the existing outbuilding, and would also be stepped in from the neighbour 

boundary by 0.3m creating staggered elevations on the southern side. In addition, the 

proposed extension and alterations to the outbuilding would result in a roof height of 

approx. 2.8m for the entire development. This is 0.5m higher than the existing 

outbuilding roof.  

7.6      It is considered that the proposed extension and alterations to the outbuilding 

would result in an over development which would dominate the rear garden of 

the application site. The proposed rear extension, combined with the existing 

outbuilding, will see the rear elevation extend over 10m from the main rear of the 

original building line and at its widest point, extend over halfway across the rear 

garden resulting in a disproportionate addition. In terms of outlook, neighbour 

amenity at 9 Homestead Road is likely to be affected due to the additional length 

and height of the proposal.   

 

7.7 As part of their appeal, the appellant has identified and submitted a photograph 

of properties with rear extensions along Cole Green Lane that are visible from 

the upper windows of the application site. The photograph shows rear 

developments to 104, 106 and 108 Cole Green Lane.   

 104 Cole Green Lane - From the photograph it is not clear if the 

development is an extension or a large covered area to the back of the 

property. No record of Estate Management Scheme consent can be found 

therefore carries little weight to support this application.  

 106 Cole Green Lane – The photograph appears to indicate that the 

development is a conservatory. An EM application for the extension at 

108 indicates the conservatory at 106 has a depth of 3m, however, no 

Estate Management application can be found.  

 108 Cole Green Lane – The photograph indicates an extension to the rear 

which obtained EMS consent in 2018. The extension is approx. 4.5m 

deep and 2.8m but does not cover the full width of the property.  

 

7.8 In addition to those properties identified above, the appellant has also 

highlighted the development at 116 Cole Green Lane which is not shown in the 

photograph. The development is similar to the subject of this appeal, however, it 

has a modest 1.5m extension to the existing outbuilding, which has been 

incorporated into the main house. As a result the overall depth is 5.2m with a 

width no wider than the existing outbuilding. The extension has an approx. height 

of 2.8m. 

 

7.9 The appellant disputes the dimensions of the proposed development and 

highlights the width of the extension element to be 3.1m however, the submitted 

plans indicate that the external width would be approx. 3.4m. The extension is 

also stepped in from the shared boundary with no.9 by approx. 0.3m which 

results in the north facing wall of the extension being over the mid-point of the 

garden by approx. 0.5m. In addition, the appellant states that the proposed 

extension would have a depth of 3.8m and that the existing outbuilding has a 

depth of 4.5m totalling 8.3m overall. The submitted plans indicate that the 

external depth of the proposed extension is approx. 4.2m and the depth of the 

existing outbuilding is approx. 4.3m (omitting the section where the proposed 

Page 49



Page 4 

extension overlaps the outbuilding). The total for both would be approx. 8.5m, 

however, there is also the covered and enclosed area that would have an 

approx. depth of 1.8m and would adjoin the existing outbuilding and proposed 

extension to the main dwelling resulting in an overall depth of over 10m.  

 

7.10 The appellant states that the proposed development would sympathetic to both 

neighbouring properties and will not create a dominant presence with no loss of 

light. It is agreed that the impact upon the access to light is likely to be minimal, 

however, at over 10m in depth and approx. 2.8m in height its proximity to the 

shared boundary with no.9 will result in a negative impact upon the outlook and 

amenity for that property.  

 

7.11 The appellant states that the proposed development would not result in 

overdevelopment of the rear garden and that ample space would remain. It is 

unclear from the plans how far down the garden the proposed development 

would extend however, the proposal is considered unbalanced with the 

extension being the widest part of the development that would dominate the 

middle section garden.  

 

7.12 The appellant states that the proposed development is not to the main building 

and that the character of the actual rear of the property would not be altered. The 

existing outbuilding is likely an original feature of the property and attached to 

the main building by a solid roof section. Whilst alterations to the outbuilding can 

be acceptable, the addition of the relatively large extension to its rear elevation 

combined with the increased height does alter the character of the property. 

 

7.13 The appellant states that the proposed development is restricted to the rear of 

the property only and that there would be no negative impact upon the street 

scene and this point is agreed.  

 

7.14 The appellant states that the development would have less impact on the local 

surroundings when compared to the impact of Homestead Lane garage block 

(adjacent to no.11) and the blocks of flats at Homestead Court to the rear of 

Homestead Lane. Although, the proposed development would be much smaller 

than these buildings the application was assessed against the existing EMS 

policies to examine the impact it would have on the application site and the 

immediate neighbourhood. It should also be noted that the buildings identified by 

the appellant are part of the wider planned layout of this area of Welwyn Garden 

City. 

 

7.15 The appellant states that the proposed development is to create a downstairs 

toilet and day room to allow an elderly relative with a serious health condition to 

be cared for at the appellant’s home. Whilst sensitive to the appellant’s wishes, 

the Estate Management Scheme should be considered when proposing 

additions to homes covered by the scheme.  

 

8  Conclusion   

  

8.1  Despite the proposed development having no impact upon the street scene and 

the wish to care for an elderly relative at home, it is considered that no 

substantial additional evidence or information has been submitted by the 

Page 50



Page 5 

appellant which would alter the officer’s recommendation. The proposed 

alterations to the existing outbuilding and erection of the proposed extension 

would result in a development that would not be subordinate to the existing 

property and that would dominate the rear garden of the application site and 

result in a detrimental impact to neighbour amenity. The original application, and 

appeal, therefore fail to comply with Policy EM1 of the Estate Management 

Scheme.  

 

9  Recommendation  

  

9.1  That Members uphold the delegated decision and dismiss the appeal.  
 

 

 

James Homer (Estate Management Scheme Manager)  

Date: 08 September 2020 

  

Background Information  

Appendix 1: Appellant’s grounds of appeal and supporting documents 

Appendix 2: Original delegated officer’s report   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 51



Page 6 

 

Page 52



From:                              Planning
Sent:                               16 April 2020 17:33
To:                                   Planning Appeals
Subject:                          FW: Appeal against Refusal of Application 6/2019/3098/EM
Attachments:                 Appendix 3.jpg; Appendix 1.jpg; Appendix 2.jpg
 
Good Afternoon,
 
Please see the below email,
 
Kind Regards,
 
Emma
 

From: Angela Eyers [mailto ] 
Sent: 16 April 2020 16:55
To: Planning
Subject: Appeal against Refusal of Application 6/2019/3098/EM

 

WARNING: This email originated outside the WHBC Network. Please be extra vigilant when opening

attachments or clicking links. 

.

Dear Sir / Madam,
 
I would like to appeal against your refusal decision on the following grounds.
 

1. The proposed extension is to the outbuildings which consist of brick built shed, toilet and store

cupboard.

2. The proposed extension is not to the main dwelling.

3. The width of the garden is 7m - the proposed extension is 3.10m - less than half the width of

the garden.

4. The existing outbuilding is approx 4.50m. The proposed extension is 3.80m. A total of 8.30m -

not 10m.

5. The proposal is sympathetic to the neighbouring properties on both sides (5 and 9 Homestead

Lane) as there will be no loss of light and it will not create a dominant presence.

6. If the extension was made to the rear of the actual dwelling then both 5 and 9 Homestead

Lane would be effected - see appendix 1 attached showing extended properties in Cole Green

Lane. They clearly are not in character or scale and have an overbearing presence on

neighbouring properties.

7. The proposed extension is not an over development and ample garden space remains.

8. The character of the actual rear of the dwelling would not be changed.

9. The extension is to the rear of the existing brick built shed, toilet and store cupboard - there is

no effect on the street scene.

10. 11 Homestead Lane has Council Garages bordering the entire length of the garden - please

see appendix 2. My proposed extension is only 3.80 metres.

11. Homestead Court flats - please see appendix 3 - rear view from 11, 9, 7 and 5 Homestead
Lane. In comparison to the flats my proposed extension is insignificant in its size.

For the reasons above, I believe that my application complies with Policy EM1 of the Estates

Page 53



Management Scheme and I respectfully request that my appeal is allowed.
 
Yours faithfully,
 

 

Angela Eyers
 

Page 54



From:                              Angela Eyers < >
Sent:                               18 April 2020 11:27
To:                                   Gillian Howell
Subject:                          6/2019/3098/EM Further information to be taken into account
 

WARNING: This email originated outside the WHBC Network. Please be extra vigilant when opening

attachments or clicking links. 

.

Dear Ms Howell,
 
I would like the following information to be taken into account during the appeal process.
 
The appendices to my Appeal were photographic evidence of the extensions to properties in Cole
Green Lane which is adjacent to Homestead Lane and can be clearly seen from my property.
 
I now list below planning applications that were granted by Estate Management and the Council's
Planning Department. These applications are far more extensive and are definitely more intrusive
than my planning application.
 
116 Cole Green Lane
6/2018/2722/HOUSE 17/12/2018
6/2018/2696/EM 17/12/2018
 
108 Cole Green Lane
6/2017/2974/HOUSE 14/02/2018
6/2017/2982/EM 14/02/2018
 
I ask that the above information is taken into account and that permission is now granted for my
planning application for an extension which is minor in comparison to the extensions granted in Cole
Green Lane (some of which have double extensions down the length of the garden).
 
As highlighted in my Appeal - my planning application for an extension
a) is only to the existing shed/toilet/store room
b) it is not to the actual dwelling
c) it has no impact on the character of the dwelling
d) it has no impact on the street scene
e) it has no impact on the quality or condition of life of the occupier in 9 Homestead Lane
f) there have been no objections
g) the garden will not be compromised - it will be enhanced
 
Yours sincerely,
 
 
Angela Eyers
 
 
 

From: Gillian Howell 
Sent: 17 April 2020 09:23

Page 55



To: ' ' 
Subject: Appeal Acknowledgement EM Agent for Application 6/2019/3098/EM

Please find attached our Appeal Acknowledgement EM Agent document for application 6/2019/3098/EM. 

Best Regards 

Gill Howell 

Planning Support Officer 

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 

Tel: 01707 357254 

Email: g.howell@welhat.gov.uk <mailto:g.howell@welhat.gov.uk> 

Working better, together 

www.welhat.gov.uk <http://www.welhat.gov.uk/> 

@WelHatCouncil <http://www.twitter.com/WelHatCouncil> 

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council <http://www.facebook.com/welwynhatfield/> 

Please consider the environment before printing this email.

You can report missed bins, abandoned vehicles, fly-tipping, litter, graffiti and flyposting as well as tell us

about problems with litter and dog bins Online. The information in this email is intended for the named

recipients only. It may be subject to public disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. Unless

the information is legally exempt from disclosure, the confidentiality of this email and your reply cannot be

guaranteed. 

This email and any attachments may contain confidential information and intellectual property (including

copyright material). It is only for the use of the addressee(s) in accordance with any instructions contained

within it. Please treat any personal and sensitivity data that may be contained within this email in accordance

with the requirements of the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) and the Data Protection Act 2018
(DPA). Such data should only be processed and retained where there is a legitimate need to do so. Should

you have a legitimate need to share this information please make the recipient aware of their responsibilities
for handling this data in accordance with the GDPR and DPA. If you are not the addressee, you are

prohibited from copying, forwarding, disclosing, saving or otherwise using it in any way. If you receive this
email in error, please immediately advise the sender and delete it. Our IT supplier Sopra Steria may monitor

the content of emails within Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council's network to ensure compliance with the
Council's policies and procedures. Emails are susceptible to alteration and their integrity (including origin)

cannot be assured. Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council and Sopra Steria shall not be liable for any
modification to a message, or for messages falsely sent.

The full Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council email disclaimer can be viewed at
www.welhat.gov.uk/emaildisclaimer.

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council is committed to protecting your privacy when you use our services. The
Privacy Notice below explains how we use information about you and how we protect your privacy.

http://www.welhat.gov.uk/privacy-notice

Page 56

mailto:g.howell@welhat.gov.uk
http://www.welhat.gov.uk/
http://www.twitter.com/WelHatCouncil
http://www.facebook.com/welwynhatfield/


Appendix 1 – Appellant Supporting Documents  

Photo toward Cole Green Lane (appendix 1 in supporting statement) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 57



Appendix 1 – Appellant Supporting Documents  

Homestead Lane garages (appendix 2 in supporting statement) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 58



Appendix 1 – Appellant Supporting Documents  

Homestead Court Flats (appendix 3 in supporting statement) 

 

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - PLANNING, PUBLIC PROTECTION AND GOVERNANCE

DELEGATED APPLICATION

Application No: 6/2019/3098/EM
Location: 7 Homestead Lane Welwyn Garden City AL7 4LT
Proposal: Erection of single storey rear extension, raising outbuilding roof 

level to facilitate conversion to habitable space with alterations to 
openings

Officer:  Mr James Homer

Recommendation: Refused

6/2019/3098/EM
Context
Site and 
Application 
description

No.7 is a two storey mid-terrace property located on the eastern side of 
Homestead Lane.  The application site is set back from the highway behind a 
grass verge, pathway and relatively deep front garden. The rear garden of the 
property backs onto the gardens of Homestead Court. 

The application seeks Estate Management Scheme consent for raising the roof 
level of an existing outbuilding and the erection of a single storey rear 
extension to facilitate conversion into a habitable space with alterations to 
openings.  

Constraints Estate Management Scheme, as defined within the Leasehold Reform Act 
1967

Relevant history Planning

Application Number: 6/2019/3103/HOUSE Decision: Decision Date: 
Proposal: Single storey rear extension to outbuilding and raising of its roof

Notifications
Neighbour 
representations

Support: 0 Object: 0 Other: 0

Summary of 
neighbour 
responses

None received.

Consultee 
responses

None received.

Relevant Policies

EM1  EM2  EM3 EM4
Others  

Considerations
Design (form, 
size, scale, siting) 
and Character 
(impact upon 

Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme states that extensions and 
alterations to existing properties will only be allowed if they are in keeping with 
the design, appearance, materials and architectural detailing used in the 
existing building and do not have a detrimental impact on the amenities and 

Page 61



2 of 3

amenities and 
values of Garden 
City)

values of the surrounding area or the residential amenity of adjoining 
occupiers.

The existing outbuilding is attached to the main dwelling is separate to the 
main dwelling and is attached to the main building by a section of roof which 
covers the area outside the back door and the existing side access which runs 
between the no.7 and no.9. The outbuilding is attached to a similar structure 
within the rear garden of no.9 and extends approx. 6.4m from into the garden 
from the rear building line of the main dwelling. The outbuilding is approx. 2.3m 
in height and extends approx. 2m from the boundary with no.9.

The application proposes to erect an addition single storey extension beyond 
the existing rear wall of the outbuilding and raise the height of the roof of the 
outbuilding to match that of the proposed extension to create a habitable living 
space.  

The proposed extension would extend approx. 4.2m from the rear of the 
existing outbuilding which, when combined with the existing outbuilding would 
result in a rear elevation which would be in excess of 10m from the rear 
elevation of the main dwelling. The proposed extension would also have an 
approximate width of 3.3m, which is approx. 1.3m wider than the existing 
outbuilding, and would also be stepped in from the neighbour boundary by 
0.3m creating staggered elevations. The result is a large addition that would 
extend more than halfway across the width of the garden. In addition, the 
combined length of the existing outbuilding and the proposed extension would 
result in a ground floor extension that would extend more than halfway down 
the length of the garden. The application does not give any information 
regarding the materials proposed for external finishes.

The proposed extension and alterations to the outbuilding would result in a 
roof height of approx. 2.8m for the entire development. This is 0.5m higher 
than the existing outbuilding roof. 

Upon the northern elevation of the development, which faces into the garden, 
two single windows are proposed: one within the proposed extension and one 
within the existing outbuilding. An existing doorway within outbuilding is to be 
bricked up and a new door and window unit is proposed for the gap between 
the outbuilding and main dwelling house.

The proposed extension and alterations to the outbuilding will result in an over 
developed rear garden which would over dominate the rear garden of the 
application site. The proposed rear extension, combined with the existing 
outbuilding, will see the rear elevation extend over 10m from the main rear of 
the original building line which would result in a disproportionate addition. 

Impact on 
neighbours

The proposed developments are unlikely to impact on neighbours in terms of 
loss of light and privacy, however, the uneven flank wall extends beyond the 
exiting shared wall of the outbuildings and is considerably higher which is likely 
to impact upon neighbour amenity in terms of outlook from the rear of the 
house and garden of no.9 Homestead Lane.  

Landscaping 
issues (incl. 
hardstandings)

None. 

Any other 
considerations 

None. 

Conclusion
The proposed extension and alterations to the outbuilding will result in an over development which 
would dominate the rear garden of the application site. The proposed rear extension, combined with 

Page 62



3 of 3

the existing outbuilding, will see the rear elevation extend over 10m from the main rear of the original 
building line and at its widest point, extend over halfway across the rear garden resulting in a 
disproportionate addition. In terms of outlook, neighbour amenity is likely to be affected due to the 
additional length and height of the proposal. As a result, the application fails to comply with Policy 
EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme. 

Reasons for Refusal: 

1. The proposed extension and alterations to the outbuilding will result in an over 
development which would dominate the rear garden of the application site. The 
proposed rear extension, combined with the existing outbuilding, will see the rear 
elevation extend over 10m from the main rear of the original building line and at its 
widest point, extend over halfway across the rear garden resulting in a 
disproportionate addition. In terms of outlook, neighbour amenity is likely to be 
affected due to the additional length and height of the proposal. As a result, the 
application fails to comply with Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme. 

REFUSED DRAWING NUMBERS

2.
Plan 
Number

Revision 
Number

Details Received Date

4865-OS2 Block Plan 6 December 2019

4865-OS1 Location Plan 6 December 2019

4865-P01 B Proposed Plans and 
Elevations

6 December 2019

4865-E01 Existing Plans and Elevations 6 December 2019

Determined By:

Mr Michael Robinson
3 February 2020

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 

 

Part I 
Main author: James Homer 
Executive Member: Cllr Stephen Boulton 
Howlands 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
ESTATE MANAGEMENT APPEALS PANEL – 23 SEPTEMBER 2020 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING AND GOVERNANCE)  
 

6/2020/0154/EM 

184 HERONSWOOD ROAD, WELWYN GARDEN CITY AL7 3EU 

REPLACEMENT OF FRONT DOOR 

APPLICANT: MR F MALIK 

1  Background  

1.1  This is an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management Scheme Consent for 

the replacement of a front door. The application (6/2020/0154/EM) was refused for 

the following reason:   

           ‘By virtue of the design and colour, the proposed front door would appear too 

modern and out of keeping within the neighbourhood, and therefore the application 

would fail to comply with Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme’.   
 

2  Site Description  

2.1  The subject property is a semi-detached property located on western side of 

Heronswood Road. The property currently has a white front door with two glazed 

panels within the top half of the door.   

3  The Proposal  

3.1   The application sought Estate Management Scheme consent to replace the existing 

white front door and frame with a new white frame and dark grey front door. The door 

would feature four square glazed panels arranged vertically on the right hand side the 

door. A letter box is positioned at the bottom of the door.  

4  Relevant Estate Management History  

4.1  None.  

5 Representations Received 

5.1 None received.   

6 Policy  

6.1 Estate Management Scheme Policies (October 2008): 

- EM1 – Extensions and alterations. 

 

Page 65

Agenda Item 9



Page 2 

7  Discussion  

7.1  This is an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management Scheme Consent for 

the replacement of an existing front door.  The appellant’s letter of appeal is 

attached at Appendix 1 and the delegated officer’s report for application 

6/2019/0154/EM is attached at Appendix 2. 

 

7.2      The key issue in the determination of this appeal is the impact the development 

is having on the character and appearance of the Garden City.  
  

7.3     All applications to the Estate Management Scheme are assessed against the 

current policies relevant to the proposals. In this case, the application was 

assessed against Policy EM1.  Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme 

states that extensions and alterations to existing properties will only be allowed if 

they are in keeping with the design, appearance, materials and architectural 

detailing used in the existing building and do not have a detrimental impact on 

the amenities and values of the surrounding area or the residential amenity of 

adjoining occupiers. 
 

7.4  The proposed replacement front door would be dark grey and feature 4 glazed 

panes down the right hand side of the door. A letter box is at the bottom of the 

door with a standard door handle located toward the centre of the left hand side.  

The door frame and incorporated glazing to the left would remain white.  

 

7.5      As part of their appeal the appellant has included a number of photographic 

examples of similar doors within a mile of the appeal site. However, only two of 

the photographs show properties that are confirmed as being in the Estate 

Management Scheme area (81 Howlands and 156 Heronswood Road). The 

locations of the properties shown in the photographs labelled jpg 1-5 are not 

identifiable. The examples from Bridge Road East (216, 218 & 224) and 143 

Heronswood are of addresses not recognised by the council’s corporate 

mapping system so have been incorrectly identified and it is unclear if they are 

within the Estate Management Scheme area. No Estate Management Scheme 

consent for the doors at 81 Howlands and 156 Heronswood Road can be found 

and, as each application should be assessed on its own merit, the doors at these 

locations do not add wait to this appeal.  

 

7.6 Despite the appellant’s submission, a compelling case has not been 

demonstrated as to why the addition of the proposed modern front door to 184 

Heronswood should override the wider values of the Estate Management 

Scheme. 

 

8  Conclusion   

  

8.1  Within this area of Heronswood Road, the majority of front doors are white and 

of a simple design and, where not white, are of a more traditional design. As a 

result, the proposed front door would appear too modern and out of keeping 

within the neighbourhood resulting in a detrimental impact. Therefore the 

application fails comply with Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme. 

 

9  Recommendation  

  

Page 66



Page 3 

9.1  That Members uphold the delegated decision and dismiss the appeal.  
 

 

 

James Homer (Estate Management Scheme Manager)  

Date: 7 September 2020. 
  

Background Information  

Appendix 1: Appellant’s grounds of appeal 

Appendix 2: Original delegated officer’s report   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 67



Page 4 

 

Page 68



From:                              Planning
Sent:                               26 March 2020 12:30
To:                                   Planning Appeals
Cc:                                   Gillian Howell
Subject:                          FW: Appeal to Refusal of Estate Management Consent No: 6/2020/0154/EM
Attachments:                 1.jpg; 2.jpg; 3.jpg; 4.jpg; 5.jpg; 81 Howlands Welwyn Garden City AL7.jpg;

143 heronswoosd road Welwyn Garden City AL7.jpg; 156 heronswoosd road
Welwyn Garden City AL7.jpg; 216 bridge road east Welwyn Garden City
AL7.jpg; 218 bridge road east Welwyn Garden City AL7.jpg; 224 bridge road
east Welwyn Garden City AL7.jpg; 81 Howlands Welwyn Garden City AL7 -
Copy.jpg; 224 bridge road east Welwyn Garden City AL7 - Copy.jpg

 
Good Afternoon,
 
Please see the below,
 
Kind Regards,
 
Emma
 

From: Fareed Malik [mailto: ] 
Sent: 26 March 2020 12:12
To: Planning
Subject: Appeal to Refusal of Estate Management Consent No: 6/2020/0154/EM

 

WARNING: This email originated outside the WHBC Network. Please be extra vigilant when opening

attachments or clicking links. 

.

To whom it may concern at the department

 

Following your rejection on granting us approval for our application to change our front door to a
more “moderner” door I would like to lodge an appeal. You rejected our application based on
the reason that our application “would appear too modern and out of keeping within the
neighbourhood”

I understand that door needs to be in keeping with the surrounding door fixings which is why we
chose a design which would blend in with existing doors in the immediate surroundings. This is
why we chose this design for the door. I have attached pictures of doors immediately within a
mile radius of ours to show you as evidence that there are doors matching ours or similar in a
modern context. I have listed some of the address to show you they are within a mile of our
property. Ours is no more “moderner” then the examples I have attached.

I would like to mention a quick point. We applied to the council after buying a house here as we
liked Welwyn garden city and we wanted to move out from London. We decided to carry out the
process correctly and apply to the council to change our door. This is even after we was
recommended by some of our new neighbours to just go ahead and change to door without the
council’s consent. I am hoping the evidence that I have supplied to show you that the door we
would like to change to already exists in the immediate surrounding area.

Page 69



 

Thank you for your help

 

Fareed Malik
 
184 Heronswood Road Welwyn Garden City AL7 3EU
 
 
No: 6/2020/0154/EM

 

 

Page 70



Appendix 1 – Appellant Statement Supporting Documents – 184 Heronswood Road 

Jpg1  

 

Jpg2  

 

 

Page 71



Appendix 1 – Appellant Statement Supporting Documents – 184 Heronswood Road 

Jpg 3 

 

Jpg4  

 

Page 72



Appendix 1 – Appellant Statement Supporting Documents – 184 Heronswood Road 

Jpg 5 

 

81 Howlands 

 

Page 73



Appendix 1 – Appellant Statement Supporting Documents – 184 Heronswood Road 

143 Heronswood Road 

 

156 Heronswood Road 

 

Page 74



Appendix 1 – Appellant Statement Supporting Documents – 184 Heronswood Road 

216 Bridge Road East  

 

218 Bridge Road East 

 

 

Page 75



Appendix 1 – Appellant Statement Supporting Documents – 184 Heronswood Road 

224 Bridge Road East 

 

Page 76



WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - PLANNING, PUBLIC PROTECTION AND GOVERNANCE

DELEGATED APPLICATION

Application No: 6/2020/0154/EM
Location: 184 Heronswood Road Welwyn Garden City AL7 3EU
Proposal:  Replacement of front door
Officer:    Mr James Homer

Recommendation: Refused

6/2020/0154/EM
Context
Site and
Application
description

No.184 is a two storey semi-detached house located on the western side of
Heronswood Road. The property is set back from the highway behind a low
hedge.

The application seeks Estate Management Scheme consent for the installation
of a replacement front door.

Constraints Estate Management Scheme, as defined within the Leasehold Reform Act
1967

Relevant history None.

Notifications
Neighbour
representations

Support:  0 Object:  0 Other:  0

Summary of
neighbour
responses

No comments received.

Consultee
responses

No comments received.

Relevant Policies

EM1 EM2 EM3 EM4

Considerations
Design (form,
size, scale, siting)
and Character
(impact upon
amenities and
values of Garden
City)

Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme states that extensions and
alterations to existing properties will only be allowed if they are in keeping with
the design, appearance, materials and architectural detailing used in the
existing building and do not have a detrimental impact on the amenities and
values of the surrounding area or the residential amenity of adjoining
occupiers.
The existing front door is white, with two narrow glazed panels on the top half
of the door. The door frame is white and incorporates a narrow full length
glazed unit positioned to the left hand side of the door.

Page 77



2 of 2

The proposed replacement front door would be dark grey and feature 4 glazed
panes down the right hand side of the door. A letter box is at the bottom of the
door with a standard door handle located toward the centre of the left hand
side.  The door frame and incorporated glazing to the left would remain white.
Within this area of Heronswood Road, the majority of front doors are white
and of a simple design and, where not white, are of a more traditional design
and colour. As a result, the proposed front door would appear too modern and
out of keeping within the neighbourhood.

Impact on
neighbours

None.

Landscaping
issues (incl.
hardstandings)

None.

Any other
considerations

None.

Conclusion
Within this area of Heronswood Road, the majority of front doors are white and of a simple design
and, where not white, are of a more traditional design and colour. As a result, the proposed front
door would appear too modern and out of keeping within the neighbourhood, and therefore the
application would fail to comply with Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme.

 Reasons for Refusal: 

1. By virtue of the design and colour, the proposed front door would appear too
modern and out of keeping within the neighbourhood, and therefore the application
would fail to comply with Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme.

REFUSED DRAWING NUMBERS

2.
Plan
Number

Revision
Number

Details Received Date

Location
Plan

Location Plan 22 January 2020

Drawing 2 Proposed Elevation 28 January 2020

Drawing 1 Existing Elevation 28 January 2020

Determined By:

Mr James Homer
23 March 2020

Page 78


	Agenda
	6 6 BROADFIELD PLACE, WELWYN GARDEN CITY - 6/2019/2122/EM - ENLARGEMENT OF DRIVEWAY
	6 - Appendix 1 - Appellant Statement
	6 - Appendix 1 - PHOTO 1
	6 - Appendix 1 - PHOTO 2
	6 - Appendix 1 - PHOTO 3
	6 - Appendix 1 - PHOTO 4
	6 - Appendix 1 - PHOTO 5
	6 - Appendix 2 - Delegated Report

	7 38 KIRKLANDS, WELWYN GARDEN CITY - 6/2019/1328/EM - FORMATION OF HARDSTANDING INCLUDING THE PARTIAL REMOVAL OF THE FRONT HEDGEROW AND REMOVAL OF A HOLLY TREE
	7 - Appendix 1 - Appellants Statement
	7 - Appendix 1 - Existing Elevation
	7 - Appendix 1 - Proposed Elevation
	7 - Appendix 1 - Section Through Proposed
	7 - Appendix 1 - Site Location Plan
	7 - Appendix 1 - Site Plan
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	7 - Appendix 2 - Delegated Report

	8 7 HOMESTEAD LANE, WELWYN GARDEN CITY - 6/2019/3098/EM - ERECTION OF A SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION INCLUDING RAISING THE ROOF OF THE EXISTING OUTBUILDING TO CREATE A HABITABLE SPACE INCLUDING ALTERATIONS TO OPENINGS
	8 - Appendix 1 - Appellants Statement Part1_Redacted
	8 - Appendix 1 - Appellants Statement Part2_Redacted
	8 -Appendix 1 Appellants Supporting Documents
	8 - Appendix 2 - Delegated Officer Report

	9 184 HERONSWOOD ROAD, WELWYN GARDEN CITY - 6/2020/0154/EM - REPLACEMENT OF A FRONT DOOR
	9 - Appendix 1 - Appellants Statement_Redacted
	9 - Appendix 1- Appellants supporting documents
	9 - Appendix 2 - Delegated Officer Report




